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PER CURIAM: 

  Shawn Lynn Hise pleaded guilty to knowingly failing to 

register and update his sex offender registration, in violation 

of 18 U.S.C.A. § 2250 (West Supp. 2012).  The district court 

sentenced Hise to twenty-seven months of imprisonment followed 

by three years of supervised release.  The court also imposed 

several special conditions of supervised release that prohibited 

Hise from (1) residing with or visiting residences with minor 

children without his probation officer’s permission; 

(2) obtaining employment or volunteering in positions that 

require contact with minor children without the permission of 

his probation officer; (3) loitering near areas where children 

normally congregate; and (4) possessing or viewing pornography 

depicting minors or actors portraying minors.  Hise appeals from 

the imposition of these enumerated conditions of supervised 

release.  For the reasons that follow, we affirm. 

  Hise argues on appeal that the district court abused 

its discretion in imposing the three conditions restricting his 

contact with minor children.  In addition, Hise argues that the 

district court failed to offer an adequate explanation for 

imposition of the prohibition related to his possession of child 

pornography.   

“A sentencing court may impose any condition that is 

reasonably related to the relevant statutory sentencing 



3 
 

factors,” including the nature and circumstances of the offense, 

the history and characteristics of the defendant, the need for 

deterrence and protecting the public from future crimes, and 

providing the defendant with training or treatment.  United 

States v. Worley, 685 F.3d 404, 407 (4th Cir. 2012); see 18 

U.S.C. § 3553(a) (2006).  While “[a] particular restriction does 

not require an offense-specific nexus, . . . the sentencing 

court must adequately explain its decision and its reasons for 

imposing it.”  Id. (internal quotation marks and citations 

omitted).  “‘District courts have broad latitude to impose 

conditions on supervised release,’ and so we review such 

conditions only for abuse of discretion.”  Id.  (quoting United 

States v. Armel, 585 F.3d 182, 186 (4th Cir. 2009)).  We have 

thoroughly reviewed the record and the relevant legal 

authorities and conclude that the district court did not abuse 

its discretion in imposing the restrictions on Hise’s contact 

with minor children, and adequately explained the final 

condition prohibiting Hise from possessing child pornography. 

Accordingly, we affirm the judgment of the district 

court.  We dispense with oral argument because the facts and 

legal contentions are adequately presented in the materials  
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before this court and argument would not aid in the decisional 

process.   

 

AFFIRMED 

 

 
 
 


